

Eidgenössische Technische Hochschule Zürich Swiss Federal Institute of Technology Zurich



Manuel Pulfer

# Multi-path routing

Semester Thesis SA-2018-41 October 2018 to January 2019

Tutor: Maria Apostolaki Supervisor: Prof. Dr. Laurent Vanbever

#### Abstract

For years the size and routing complexity of the internet increased. For every source/destination pairing there are several possible paths traffic can take. But only one is used and the remaining are only there as possible backups if the main link is interrupted for any reason.

The goal of this project is to analyze the performance of multiple paths from several stub-ASes to different destinations and make assumptions whether multi path routing would be a viable option to increase bandwidth and fault tolerance.

# Contents

1	Introduction	9
	1.1 Motivation	9
	1.2 The Task	9
	1.3 Related Work	9
	1.4 Overview	9
2	Background	<b>11</b> 11
	22 CAIDA data server	11
	2.3 Source ASes	11
	2.4 Experiment destinations	11
	2.5 Experimentation timeline	12
3	Implementation / Design	15
	3.1 Scripts	15
	3.1.1 pret.sh	15
	3.1.2 as_sort.py	15
		10
	3.1.4 Inpe_nelpers.py	10
	3.1.5 puil_experiment_uala.py	10
	$5.1.0$ make_analysis.py	10
4	Results         4.1       Analysis 1 - best next hop changes per source and destination	<b>21</b> 21
	4.2 Analysis 2 - probes and next hop distribution with the best RTT	21
	4.3 Analysis 3 - standard deviation CDFs for every AS	21
	4.4 Analysis 4 - stability and standard deviation CDFs for every probe	21
	4.5 Analysis 5 - number of next hops per source and destination	21
	4.6 Analysis 6 - different next hops comparison for every source and destination	22
5	Discussion	49
	5.1 Inter-AS differences	49
	5.2 Multi-path routing evaluation	49
	5.3 Difficulties and how to avoid them	50
6	Conclusion & Outlook	51
-	6.1 Conclusion	51
	6.2 Outlook	51
^	Timotoble of project	52
А		53
D	Originalproblem	55

# **List of Figures**

4.1	distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 378	33
4.2	distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 20880	33
4.3	distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 24398	34
4.4	distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 24560	34
4.5	distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 35807	35
4.6	distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 43996	35
4.7	CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 378	36
4.8	CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 20880	37
4.9	CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 24398	38
4.10	CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 24560	39
4.11	CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 35807	40
4.12	CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 43996	41
4.13	all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 378	42
4.14	all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 20880	43
4.15	all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 24398	44
4.16	all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 24560	45
4.17	all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 35807	46
4.18	all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 43996	47

# **List of Tables**

2.1 2.2 2.3	all ASes that were used for experimentsthe websites that were used for the traceroutesdates for all experiments	12 12 13
3.1	all probes per AS with those used for experiments fat	16
4.1 4.2	Amount of best next hop changes per AS/experiment run (10 dest, first 20 dest or second 20 dest) and destination	23 23
4.3	For AS 20880 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?	24
4.4	For AS 24398 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?	24
4.5	For AS 24560 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?	25
4.6	For AS 35807 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?	25
4.7	For AS 43996 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?	26
4.8	mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 378 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)	27
4.9	mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 20880 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)	28
4.10	mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 24398 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)	29
4.11	mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 24560 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)	20
4.12	mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 35807 (standard	00
4.13	mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 43996 (standard	31
	deviation and mean in milliseconds)	32
A.1 A.2	proposed timetable at the start of the project	53 53

# Chapter 1

# Introduction

For years the size and routing complexity of the internet increased. For every source-destination pairing there are several possible paths traffic can take. But only one is used and the remaining are only there as possible backups if the main link is interrupted for any reason.

The goal of this project is to analyze the performance of multiple paths from several stub-ASes<sup>1</sup> to different destinations and make assumptions whether multi path routing would be a viable option to increase bandwidth and fault tolerance.

## 1.1 Motivation

There are several positive aspects to multi-path routing. Due to using more than one link going to a destination the possibility of all links failing at the same time is significantly lower than the chance of it occuring for a single-path connection. But not only does this lead to increased fault tolerance but also to less possibility for congestion and increased bandwidth. Additionally it is possible to even increase security of TCP connections, see [16].

## 1.2 The Task

The goal of this project was an evaluation. Using probes in ASes all over the world we ran traceroutes to different websites to see possible different paths leading to these destinations. For this to happen we needed to create scripts that would help us generate a work flow to run experiments efficiently. The evaluation then concentrated on the performance differences between the different source ASes when they connect to a number of different destinations.

## 1.3 Related Work

This project is not the first in this regard and will certainly not be the last. There have been papers on this subject for a long time (relativ to the age of the internet), see [11]. But most of them are more recent and up to date (see [13]). There are even some very interesting applications that are evaluated, i.e. using game theory and multi-path routing to combat incidents which can include terrorist attacks, see [15].

## 1.4 Overview

In chapter 2 we give insight in the background of the tools used, the ASes that were used and the destination we probed. Following that in chapter 3 we show the programs that were created or modified to get our work flow. In chapter 4 we present the results we gathered which we then discuss in chapter 5. We finish it in chapter 6 with our conclusion of the project and a short outlook in further possible research problems.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>autonomous systems - short form used from now on

## Chapter 2

# Background

## 2.1 RIPE Atlas

The main platform used for gathering experiment data was RIPE Atlas. This is a internet data collection system run by RIPE NCC [10]. RIPE is the Regional Internet Registry (RIR) for Europe, Central Asia, Russia and West Asia.

RIPE Atlas [7] is essentially a database of small hardware devices called probes placed in ASes all over the world. Basic data is available to the public, for instance internet connectivity via traffic maps and streaming data visualizations. Members that host their own probe(s) are able to earn "credits" which they can use in turn to make specific measurements. Most interesting for us was the possibility to run traceroutes from probes in different ASes to specific destinations. Using the API that they provide it is easy to write scripts which run for an extended period of time and repeat the same measurements.

### 2.2 CAIDA data server

The CAIDA [4] data server [3] provides monthly updated relationship data between ASes. There are two sub folders in this server, serial-1 and serial-2. The former is created by using the method described in [17], whereas in the latter the result from serial-1 is used and combined with the relationships inferred from [14]. For this project the data set */serial-2/20180901.as-rel2.txt.bz2* was the basis on which we worked on. This file was generated on *20 September 2018*. The resulting .txt file has the layout seen at 2.1.

Listing 2.1: layout of the as relationship data set

```
<provider-as>|<customer-as>|-1
<peer-as>|<peer-as>|0|<source>
```

## 2.3 Source ASes

The source ASes that we make the traceroutes from are very important. They need enough probes to get multiple paths towards a destination. How exactly the ASes were chosen is described in chapter 3.1.4. The ASes used in this project can be seen in table 2.1. The location and the amount of IP addresses each AS is composed of was determined through an IP lookup website [6].

## 2.4 Experiment destinations

For our experiments to be as broadly applicable as possible the websites we want to reach should be commonly visited ones. Alexa [2] was our source of choice to get a list to choose from. Out of the top 50 sites<sup>1</sup> we picked a selection. As explained in section 2.5 we chose ten

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>as of October 2018

AS	location	number of IP addresses
378	IUCC - Israel InterUniversity Computation Center	1,164,800
20880	Tele Columbus (Germany)	132,096
24398	Auckland University of Technology (New Zealand)	65,792
24560	Bharti Airtel Ltd., Telemedia Services (India)	2,514,432
35807	SkyNet Ltd (Russia)	278,016
43996	Booking.com BV (Netherlands)	6,656

Table 2.1: all ASes that were used for experiments

destinations at the start but increased this number to twenty for the last two 24 hour runs. Our selection was chosen randomly. See table 2.2 for all of them. The upper half were used for the first 24 hour experiment. The whole of them are the destinations for the last two experiments. The IP addresses were determined using the dig command. The URLs of the sites used were saved in a file called *ALEXA\_OCT\_2018.txt* where every line is one website address. The IPs were saved in a separate files called *ALEXA\_OCT\_2018\_IP.txt*. To link the IP to the URL they have to be on the same line in both files.

websites	IP used
google.ru	216.58.210.3
linkedin.com	108.174.10.10
wikipedia.org	91.198.174.192
twitch.tv	151.101.66.167
youtube.com	216.58.210.14
google.com.hk	216.58.214.99
pages.tmall.com	80.231.126.253
jd.com	120.52.148.118
baidu.com	123.125.115.110
taobao.com	140.205.220.96
netflix.com	54.77.108.2
microsoft.com	191.239.213.197
t.co	199.16.156.11
yandex.ru	5.255.255.55
facebook.com	157.240.20.35
360.cn	36.110.213.49
amazon.com	176.32.98.166
csdn.net	47.95.164.112
aliexpress.com	198.11.132.250
twitter.com	104.244.42.1

Table 2.2: the websites that were used for the traceroutes

### 2.5 Experimentation timeline

The first two long experiment runs were for ASes 24398 and 43996. Eager to start and not thinking of the final analysis they were started with randomized websites. Every measurement block (see 3.1.4) used a newly pulled website from the top 50 Alexa websites (see 2.4). This was quickly realized and corrected for the next two experiments (AS 20880 and 35807) and always the same ten destination were used. Shortly after we decided to increase the amount of destinations to twenty. This would give us the most data while still being inside the limits set by RIPE Atlas. After the first 24 hour run with all four AS and twenty destinations it was decided to add more sources to get even more data. Two more ASes were added (378 and 24560). All the experiments up to now were repeated for these new ones. To get more comparison possibilities the 24 hour runs with twenty targets were repeated for all ASes. To have all the AS on the same

level for all experiments we repeated the one with ten destinations for AS 24398 and AS 43996 to not rely on measurements made with random websites as destinations. In total we have one batch with ten destinations for every AS and two batches with twenty destinations for every AS. The exact date on which we ran the experiments are shown in table 2.3.

Run	378	20880	24398	24560	35807	43996
10	28.11.2018	31.10.2018	03.01.2019	08.12.2018	31.10.2018	03.01.2018
20-1	05.12.2018	07.12.2018	30.11.2018	27.11.2018	09.12.2018	01.12.2018
20-2	18.12.2018	19.12.2018	20.12.2018	21.12.2018	22.12.2018	23.12.2018

Table 2.3: dates for all experiments

# **Chapter 3**

# Implementation / Design

## 3.1 Scripts

There were 6 scripts written or modified for this project:

- 1. pref.sh
- 2. as\_sort.py
- 3. probes.py
- 4. ripe\_helpers.py
- 5. pull\_experiment\_data.py
- 6. make\_analysis.py

Each of those has a part to play in the pipeline used for running experiments and will be further explained in the following subsections. The scripts pref.sh, probes.py, ripe\_helpers.py and pull\_experiment\_data.py were originally written by Maria Apostolaki [1]. During this project they were then for the most parts modified to suit our needs.

### 3.1.1 pref.sh

Here we have a little program that pulls the RIS Raw Data [9] from a server [8]. The data we used was from September 2018<sup>1</sup>. Using bgpdump it creates one text-file with all IP prefix ranges mapped to the corresponding AS. We called this file *pref01.txt*.

### 3.1.2 as\_sort.py

This rather short script was mainly used at the beginning. It takes the */serial-2/20180901.as-rel2.txt.bz2* file and goes through it searching for stub-ASes. It uses the layout that is given by listing 2.1 and puts all provider-ASes in one set and all customer-ASes in the other, then subtracts the provider-AS set from the other. The remaining are the ASes that don't provide and only receive, the stub-ASes.

### 3.1.3 probes.py

After receiving the list of ASes that should be searched for, it uses the RIPE Atlas API and pulls all probe-IDs for each corresponding AS. Specifically it also checks if there are five or more probes in an AS. If this is not the case it gets skipped. This decision was made to ensure that there are enough paths to compare.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>2018.09 directory on the server

### 3.1.4 ripe\_helpers.py

Employing the RIPE Atlas API we schedule experiments here. This script includes functions for traceroutes and for pings. We are only interested in the former. To use this feature of RIPE Atlas an API key is needed, which has to be generated by a user with an account.

The program goes through all six ASes, making measurements for 24 hours for each. Because the amount of simultaneous experiments is limited to 100 we have to schedule everything accordingly. Every traceroute has to run for ten minutes. We added a buffer of five minutes in the case something is not working as intended. In those fifteen minutes we want to run what we call a **measurement block** for every destination. The idea is that the traceroutes to a website from all probes should be simultaneous for the sake of comparison. To circumvent parallelism in this script we give every experiment in a measurement block the same start time <sup>2</sup>. For every AS the script generates a .txt file into which it puts the four-tuple

- measurement ID
- probe ID
- destination URL
- destination IP

for every traceroute done. The file is named *as\_number\_XYZ.txt*, where XYZ is the AS-number itself.

**preliminary experiments** For all the stub-ASes we found with probes py we ran preparatory measurements to see how many different next hops they had. Ideally every probe would have a unique path leading to the destination. In reality this is usually not the case. All ASes that we found have at least two probes that share their first next hop. In the end we picked six ASes that were multi-homed. The reasons not more were picked were mostly the time constraints for this semester project and the amount of RIPE Atlas credits a single 24 hour experiment consumes. All of those ASes have five or more probes in them. For our 24 hour experiments we reduced the number of used probes in all of them to five or even less. This has two reasons. First, and most important, probes with duplicate first next hops were not needed as they send packets over the same path. Probes were only eliminated after carefully checking their next hops for all destinations. A probe was only removed from use in experiments if it had the same next hops for all destinations as a different probe. Secondly because we wanted to make measurements on twenty destinations and 100 experiments was the limit set by RIPE Atlas, in an ideal case we wouldn't have more than five probes to traceroute from. Of course the amount of twenty websites wasn't set in stone and could be lowered, but after all the duplicate elimination nearly all ASes were left with 5 or less probes. So it was a trade-off we accepted. See table 3.1 for an overview of all probes and the ones that were used in the end.

AS	all probe IDs - as of 13th Oct 2018
378	16933, <b>17832</b> , <b>17846</b> , 17847, 17855, 17856, <b>17875</b> , 17879, <b>17893</b> , <b>17895</b>
20880	933, 2443, 11990, 17540, 29385, 30781
24398	11843, 11947, 12036, 12171, 12793
24560	<b>23419</b> , <b>25164</b> , 25398, 32886, <b>33546</b>
35807	<b>3026</b> , <b>10221</b> , 11374, <b>20607</b> , 2515, <b>26658</b> , <b>28562</b>
43996	6087, 6088, 6141, 6144, 6149

Table 3.1: all probes per AS with those used for experiments fat

### 3.1.5 pull\_experiment\_data.py

This is the second half of the process of running experiments. After the 24 hour period is passed for an AS we run this script to pull the traceroute data from the RIPE Atlas web server and save it in our own format. We use the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>One minute added to the time when starting the for-loop which cycles through the probes

is\_success, results = AtlasResultsRequest(\*\*{"msm\_id":msm\_id}).create()

command to get the data as a JSON file. Because only a minimal part is needed for our analysis we are parsing it with the <code>read\_traceroutes(msm\_id)</code> function.

**assumption** To not be overwhelmed with different variations of the same path we take the assumption that the first next hop after the source AS in the traceroute path is unique for this route. Without it this project would get immensely more complicated. Nevertheless we tested this assumption for every source AS in numerous random paths and it was the case for all of them.

**problem cases** From the API we get the traceroute path with the IPs of the different hops. Because we want to know when the packets leavs our source AS we need to map the IP to the corresponding AS. This was done by using the *pref01.txt* file which contains all AS with their corresponding IP ranges. Using a *R-tree* finding the correct AS is done easily. Nonetheless there were several problem cases we had to handle during this process.

- If there is no experiment data on the server we don't receive anything when pulling with the API. The cause for this is that we tried to run traceroutes from probes that are offline or not reachable, but aren't marked as such when getting the probe data from RIPE Atlas. This led to the generation of a measurement ID but no resolvable traceroute, even though the four-tuple was written in the *as\_number\_XYZ.txt* file. If this is the case we return two dummy values<sup>3</sup> for the RTT and the delay. After returning from the function these will be checked and the file write skipped if those values are present.
- For our analysis the last hop of the traceroute is the only important part. It gives us the time it took the UDP packet to reach the final destination and the answer to arrive at the probe. But not all hosts will respond. For several reasons a firewall can block traceroute packets from entering and thus hindering us from getting the data we want. If the last hop is not resolved the measurement is unfortunately not useful for us and has to be dropped. Again the same dummy values as for the faulty measurements are filled in for the RTT and the delay and are checked after leaving the function.
- The traceroute AS-path doesn't always start with the source AS. Thus we decided that the first AS next hop will be the AS that follows the source AS in the path. In some cases the source AS does not appear at all. These also had to be discarded because we can not say where our source is situated.
- Following the last problem we discovered something during the last stage of this project. There is a possibility for so-called **bogon IPs** [12] to appear in the path of a traceroute. Most of these are martians which are IPs used inside a network (i.e. loopback 127.0.0.1) but there also unallocated IPs which aren't yet assigned to an RIR by IANA [5]. This means for all these addresses we are not able to map them to an AS. What made this insidious is that when trying to map them to an AS the R-tree didn't throw an exception but just returned the entry on the bottom of the *perf01.txt* file: 0.0.0.0/0 14007. This led to this bug not being detected until nearly the end. Our solution for this was re-pulling all the data from the RIPE Atlas server and skipping all non-mappable IPs. Thus the paths we received don't contain any bogon IPs. For example if the path beforehand was [378]-[172-17-200-105]-[16509] it would turn into [378]-[16509]

After passing through the parser, the data is split in three different files: *experiment\_data\_xxx-xxx-xxx.txt*, *all\_hops\_XYZ.txt* and *next\_hop\_XYZ.txt*.

experiment\_data Contains the five-tuple

- AS of the first hop after the source
- RTT of the first packet to the destination

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>A value that is so big that traceroute would time out before reaching it

- epoch starting time stamp of the experiment [seconds]
- mean of all three RTT to the destination
- ID of the probe that was used

for every measurement that was available to be pulled and not rejected because of a missing first or last hop. The file is generated for every destination. The xxx-xxx-xxx is a placeholder for the IP address.

**all\_hops** Here we save all the traceroute AS-paths. After every data pull via the API it is updated. XYZ again stands for the AS-number.

**next\_hops** This file is generated at the end of the pull process for an AS. For each destination we take down all different next hops we found leading to it.

### 3.1.6 make\_analysis.py

All analysis steps are executed in this program. For every AS we go through all of its *experiment\_data* files (ten and twenty destinations). Some of the different evaluations are using only data from one destination, some all data of an AS.

**best next hop change over time** We define the best next hop as the one with the lowest RTT. For one AS we go through each destination and take the best one for every measurement block (the fifteen minutes when all probes are sending a traceroute at the same time). Then we check if the best next hop changes over time. For every change we increase a counter. At the end the program prints a number for each destination showing how many times the best next hop has changed.

**best next hop for all destinations** Extending from the last analysis we make a small statistic where we show how much a certain next hop and probe was the quickest path to a destination. This is across all destinations for an AS. For each next hop and probe a percentage is printed which shows the amount this path was the fastest over the whole experiment.

**RTT change per source and destination** For each destination we take all RTT of a probe in an AS and take the standard deviation<sup>4</sup>. This gives us a value for each probe for each destination. After sorting them from lowest to highest they are plotted as a cumulative distribution function (CDF). See Figure 4.7 for an example.

**stableness of probes** This evaluation consists of two steps. First we check if the probe ever changes its next hop. Secondly we make a CDF for every probe seperately using the standard deviations we got for every destination. In the end we write in the title if the next hop changed or not.

**number of different next hops per source and destination** Using all the data from an AS we make a dictionary where every destination has a list with counters showing how many different next hops it had for every measurement block. We just want to see if it changes over time so we go through each list and check that.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>using numpy.std()

**standard deviation and mean for every next hop to a destination** To be able to compare the different next hops (and thus different paths to a destination) we need a metric to do that. For every destination we take all RTTs of a next hop and take the standard deviation and the mean<sup>5</sup> of those values. Again we put this into a dictionary leading to the keys being all the destination websites. Every one of those has its own dictionary with the next hops as entries. Each next hop then has a list with the standard deviation, the mean and the amount of times this next hop was used for this destination. See listing 3.1 for a visualization.

Listing 3.1: Visualization of the next hop RTT dictionary

next_hop_rtt_dict	
baidu.com	
14007	
	1.858 (standard deviation [ms])
i i i	0.859 (mean [ms])
i i i	143 (amount of times this next hop was used here)
21320	
4808	
google.com.hk	
jd.com	
etc.	

<sup>5</sup>using numpy.mean()

## **Chapter 4**

## **Results**

### 4.1 Analysis 1 - best next hop changes per source and destination

In table 4.1 we have a detailed view on the amount of different best next hop over each 24 hour period. Every time the best next hop changed the counter is increased.

# 4.2 Analysis 2 - probes and next hop distribution with the best RTT

For each AS we have a double plot here. On the top the distribution for all probes and on the bottom the same but for all next hops. See figures 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6

### 4.3 Analysis 3 - standard deviation CDFs for every AS

The plots 4.7, 4.8, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11 and 4.12 are CDFs for all standard deviations of a AS. The standard deviations were made for all RTTs from one probe going to one destination. The plots include the standard deviations from all three experiment runs.

## 4.4 Analysis 4 - stability and standard deviation CDFs for every probe

For every probe we checked if its next hop changes for any destination. The plots 4.13, 4.14, 4.15, 4.16, 4.17 and 4.18 show for each probe a CDF containing all standard deviations (one per destination). There is one plot per experimentation run.

## 4.5 Analysis 5 - number of next hops per source and destination

The tables 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5, 4.6 and 4.7 give answer to the question whether the number of concurrent next hops towards a destination changed over time. Included in the each cell is the number of websites for which the answer is valid and which ones it includes.

# 4.6 Analysis 6 - different next hops comparison for every source and destination

In tables 4.8, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11, 4.12 and 4.13 we have for every AS all destinations that were used in all experiments with detailed information to each next hop. This includes the AS number, the standard deviation and mean of all RTTs and the amount this next hop was used.

			378			20880			24398			24650		:	35807			43996
	10	20-1	20-2	10	20-1	20-2	10	20-1	20-2	10	20-1	20-2	10	20-1	20-2	10	20-1	20-2
google.ru	41	26	5	1	1	1	7	11	9	14	29	1	38	8	35	11	36	14
linkedin.com	47	41	5	1	1	1	9	15	9	2	1	10	3	4	3	1	7	1
wikipedia.org	37	39	13	1	1	1	7	10	9	1	1	1	11	2	8	17	20	13
twitch.tv	31	9	3	1	5	1	7	11	11	1	5	1	1	2	3	8	50	14
youtube.com	40	37	18	3	1	1	13	17	21	28	21	9	40	1	39	10	44	12
google.com.hk	34	31	20	7	3	5	9	23	19	26	2	27	42	1	17	10	44	13
pages.tmall.com	15	13	6	1	7	5	3	9	17	14	1	9	7	1	1	49	42	51
jd.com	41	30	33	9	36	9	9	14	15	5	3	7	16	2	2	48	39	48
baidu.com	13	13	6	3	5	3	3	11	17	13	3	9	1	2	3	49	28	42
taobao.com	41	2	3	1	5	5	3	22	13	6	17	10	9	3	3	43	41	42
netflix.com		41	33		3	9		23	11		3	3		3	8		29	52
microsoft.com		9	11		1	2		1	1		0	0		0	0		0	0
t.co		37	31		33	10		27	13		1	1		9	16		1	0
yandex.ru		44	29		33	11		31	13		5	7		21	33		47	32
facebook.com		7	3		2	4		1	1		1	1		0	0		0	0
360.cn		33	20		1	3		24	25		13	17		11	18		59	58
amazon.com		20	17		3	3		31	27		13	5		23	31		59	57
csdn.net		16	16		7	1		31	31		10	15		9	12		64	56
aliexpress.com		25	21		54	46		28	20		1	1		9	9		65	60
twitter.com		15	15		40	13		27	31		1	1		5	19		13	52

Table 4.1: Amount of best next hop changes per AS/experiment run (10 dest, first 20 dest or second 20 dest) and destination

AS 378	10	20-1	20-2		
Yes	3/10 google.com.hk, pages.tmall.com, taobao.com	11/20 twitch.tv, yandex.ru, ama- zon.com, taobao.com, microsoft.com, t.co, face- book.com, youtube.com, netflix.com, aliex- press.com, linkedin.com	13/20 yandex.ru, baidu.com, amazon.com, taobao.com, mi- crosoft.com, twitter.com, t.co, facebook.com, youtube.com, jd.com, net- flix.com, aliexpress.com, csdn.net		
No	7/10 twitch.tv, wikipedia.org, youtube.com, google.ru, baidu.com, jd.com, linkedin.com	9/20 google.com.hk, 360.cn, wikipedia.org, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, google.ru, twitter.com, jd.com, csdn.net	7/20 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, wikipedia.org, pages.tmall.com, google.ru, linkedin.com		

Table 4.2: For AS 378 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?

AS 20880	10	20-1	20-2			
Yes	6/10 google.com.hk, youtube.com, pages.tmall.com, baidu.com, jd.com, linkedin.com	15/20 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yan- dex.ru, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, ama- zon.com, taobao.com, twitter.com, t.co, youtube.com, jd.com, net- flix.com, aliexpress.com, csdn.net	16/20 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yan- dex.ru, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, ama- zon.com, taobao.com, twitter.com, t.co, youtube.com, jd.com, net- flix.com, aliexpress.com, csdn.net, linkedin.com			
No	4/10 twitch.tv, wikipedia.org, taobao.com, google.ru	5/20 wikipedia.org, google.ru, microsoft.com, face- book.com, linkedin.com	4/20 wikipedia.org, google.ru, microsoft.com, face- book.com			

Table 4.3: For AS 20880 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?

AS 24398	10	20-1	20-2
Yes	4/10 google.com.hk, twitch.tv, wikipedia.org, pages.tmall.com	4/20 baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, taobao.com, youtube.com	7/20 google.com.hk, pages.tmall.com, ama- zon.com, taobao.com, google.ru, microsoft.com, jd.com
No	6/10 youtube.com, taobao.com, google.ru, baidu.com, jd.com, linkedin.com	16/20 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yandex.ru, wikipedia.org, ama- zon.com, google.ru, mi- crosoft.com, twitter.com, t.co, facebook.com, jd.com, netflix.com, aliex- press.com, csdn.net, linkedin.com	13/20 360.cn, twitch.tv, yan- dex.ru, wikipedia.org, baidu.com, twitter.com, t.co, facebook.com, youtube.com, netflix.com, aliexpress.com, csdn.net, linkedin.com

Table 4.4: For AS 24398 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?

### 4.6 Analysis 6 - different next hops comparison for every source and destination 25

AS 24560	10	20-1	20-2
Yes	9/10 google.com.hk, twitch.tv, wikipedia.org, youtube.com,	12/20 360.cn, twitch.tv, yan- dex.ru, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, ama-	16/19 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yandex.ru, wikipedia.org, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, ama-
	pages.tmall.com, taobao.com, baidu.com, jd.com, linkedin.com	zon.com, taobao.com, microsoft.com, jd.com, netflix.com, csdn.net, linkedin.com	zon.com, taobao.com, google.ru, youtube.com, t.co, jd.com, netflix.com, csdn.net, linkedin.com
		8/20	2/10
No	1/10	google.com.hk,	twitter com
	google.ru	twitter.com, t.co, face- book.com, youtube.com,	book.com, aliex- press.com
		aliexpress.com	

Table 4.5: For AS 24560 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?

AS 35807	10	20-1	20-2
Yes	4/10 google.com.hk,	3/19 microsoft.com, id.com,	3/18 vandex.ru, id.com, net-
	wikipedia.org, youtube.com, jd.com	linkedin.com	flix.com
		16/19	15/18
	6/10	google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yandex.ru,	google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv,
No	twitch.tv, pages.tmall.com, taobao.com, google.ru,	wikipedia.org, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, aliex- press.com, taobao.com,	wikipedia.org, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, aliex- press.com, taobao.com,
	baidu.com, linkedin.com	t.co, amazon.com, net-	twitter.com, t.co, ama-
		flix.com, youtube.com, csdn.net	zon.com, csdn.net, linkedin.com

Table 4.6: For AS 35807 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?

AS 43996	10	20-1	20-2
	1/10	2/18	5/18
Yes	taobao.com	amazon.com, csdn.net	baidu.com, twitter.com, t.co, amazon.com, csdn.net
No	9/10 google.com.hk, twitch.tv, wikipedia.org, youtube.com, pages.tmall.com, google.ru, baidu.com, jd.com, linkedin.com	16/18 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yandex.ru, wikipedia.org, baidu.com, pages.tmall.com, aliex- press.com, taobao.com, google.ru, youtube.com, twitter.com, t.co, jd.com, netflix.com, linkedin.com	13/18 google.com.hk, 360.cn, twitch.tv, yan- dex.ru, wikipedia.org, pages.tmall.com, aliex- press.com, taobao.com, google.ru, youtube.com, jd.com, netflix.com, linkedin.com

Table 4.7: For AS 43996 did the number of different next hops for a destination change over time?

### 4.6 Analysis 6 - different next hops comparison for every source and destination 27

AS 378		10			20-1				20-2		
	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3 next hop 4	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4
	AC 15160	AC 01000	полтнор с полтнор т	AC 15160	AC 01000	nox nop o	noxt nop 1	AC 15160	AC 01000	noxt nop o	noxt nop 1
	AS 15169	AS 21320		AS 15169	AS 21320			AS 15169	AS 21320		
and and a mu	std: 0.244	std: 5.119		std: 0.245	std: 10.865			std: 0.254	std: 2.238		
google.ru	mean: 0.831	mean: 68 741		mean: 0.874	mean: 64 933			mean: 0.876	mean: 63 669		
	incan. 0.001	1110011-001741		11100114	11041.04.000			1110211. 0.070	incan: 00.000		
	now much: 174	now much: 264		now much: 170	now much: 85			now much: 172	now much: 86		
	AS 14413	AS 21320		AS 14413	AS 21320			AS 14413	AS 21320		
	atd: E 211	atd: 20,401		atd: 0.250	atd: 7 716			atd: 0.0E0	atd: 0.770		
linkedin com	SIG. 5.511	SIG. 29.401		siu. 0.259	stu. 7.716			stu. 0.259	SIU. 2.779		
	mean: 1.248	mean: 163.632		mean: 0.882	mean: 157.162			mean: 0.884	mean: 154.811		
	how much: 173	how much: 265		how much: 169	how much: 85			how much: 172	how much: 86		
		101 11001 200		10.01000	1011110011-00			1011110011112	101111001100		
	AS 21320	AS 14907		AS 21320	AS 14907			AS 21320	AS 14907		
	std: 4.253	std: 0.281		std: 0.728	std: 0.246			std: 50.478	std: 0.311		
wikipedia.org	magn: 64.040	moon: 0.9E4		magn: 62.001	maan: 0.000			maan; 71 124	moon: 0.0EC		
	mean. 04.940	mean. 0.654		111ean. 63.291	111ean. 0.900			mean. / 1.134	mean. 0.956		
	how much: 266	how much: 172		how much: 87	how much: 170			how much: 87	how much: 168		
}	AS 21220	AS 54112		AS 21220	AS 54112			AS 21220	AS 54112		
	A3 21320	A3 34113		A3 21320	763 34113			A3 21320	A3 34113		
twitch to	std: 2.648	std: 0.212		std: 0.511	std: 0.271			std: 35.815	std: 0.286		
Invitori.tv	mean: 59 098	mean: 0.856		mean: 63 034	mean: 0.942			mean: 66 536	mean: 0.983		
	have an abs 000	have an about of		have a start of	have an about 2			h ann an ab 01	have a start of the start		
	now much: 269	now much: 161		now much: 86	now much: 159			now much: 91	now much: 160		
	AS 15169	AS 21320		AS 15169	AS 21320			AS 15169	AS 21320		
	ctd: 2 950	ctd: 7 597		ctd: 0.270	ctd: 2 100			ctd: 2 406	ctd: 10 006		
voutube.com	510. 2.000	Siu. 7.337		Siu. 0.270	Siu. 2.199			Stu. 3.400	Sid. 10.300		
,	mean: 1.075	mean: 69.092		mean: 0.956	mean: 63.986			mean: 1.264	mean: 65.937		
	how much: 160	how much: 263		how much: 155	how much: 87			how much: 156	how much: 87		
	10111100111100	1011110011200		10, 15, 100	10.04000			10111100111100	1000000		
	AS 15169	AS 21320		AS 15169	AS 21320			AS 15169	AS 21320		
	std: 0.197	std: 10.107		std: 1.069	std: 0.224			std: 0.236	std: 10.702		
google.com.hk	mean: 0.850	mean: 67 000		mean: 1.025	mean: 65.012		1	mean: 1 005	mean: 66 122		1
1	mean. 0.030			1. 1.025	1		1				1
1	now much: 165	now much: 194		now much: 152	now much: 85		1	now much: 154	now much: 86		1
	AS 6453	AS 21320		AS 6453	AS 21320	1	1	AS 6453	AS 21320		1
1	atd: 0.005	atd: 0.744		atd: 0.044	atd: 4 0EF		1	atd: 0.000	atd: 0.774		1
nages trail com	std: 0.225	sta: 8.744		sto: 0.244	sta: 4.255		1	sta: 0.229	SI0: 2.//4		1
pages.mai.com	mean: 0.841	mean: 103.107		mean: 0.914	mean: 89.547		1	mean: 0.958	mean: 90.074		1
	how much: 160	how much: 264		how much: 144	how much: 99			how much: 150	how much: 99		
	1000 10011.109	10/1/11/0011. 204		1047 110011. 144	1000 110011.00			10/0/110011150	10001000		
	AS 133119	AS 21320		AS 133119	AS 21320			AS 133119	AS 21320		
	std: 0 207	std: 78 517		std: 0.263	std: 79 154			std: 0.285	std: 129.018		
jd.com	0.0.0.700			0.0.0.000	070,000			0.000	100.040		
	mean: 0.792	mean: 411.218		mean: 0.836	mean: 379.390			mean: 0.850	mean: 408.940		
	how much: 171	how much: 258		how much: 147	how much: 89			how much: 138	how much: 83		
	AC 4909	AC 01000		AC 4909	AC 01000			AC 4909	AC 01000		
	A3 4000	A5 21320		AS 4000	A5 21320			A5 4000	AS 21320		
to a late a sum	std: 1.402	std: 71.580		std: 0.498	std: 74.540			std: 0.248	std: 91.559		
baldu.com	mean: 0.984	mean: 365 059		mean: 0.941	mean: 345 733			mean: 0.937	mean: 344 034		
	have an about 70	have much 405		have an about 10	have a second			have a state	have shown of		
	now much: 173	now much: 185		now much: 140	now much: 92			now much: 144	now much: 94		
	AS 37963	AS 21320		AS 37963	AS 21320			AS 37963	AS 21320		
	ctd: 0 194	ctd: 47 295		ctd: 0.220	ctd: 0.262			ctd: 0.220	ctd: 46 700		
taobao.com	SIG. 0.134	Stu. 47.303		510. 0.223	SIU. 0.202			510. 0.230	Siu. 40.733		
	mean: 0.815	mean: 346.424		mean: 0.847	mean: 72.351			mean: 0.883	mean: 93.271		
	how much: 171	how much: 92		how much: 130	how much: 4			how much: 143	how much: 6		
				40.7740	10.00005	40.40500		10 7740	10,00005	10 10500	
				AS //13	AS 20965	AS 16509		AS //13	AS 20965	AS 16509	
				std: 0.142	std: 37.206	std: 0.465		std: 0.177	std: 1.099	std: 0.270	
netflix.com				moon: 59 466	moon: 77 029	moon: 0 900		moon: 59 467	moon: 72 697	moon: 0.994	
				mean. 30.400	inean. 77.020	mean. 0.050		iiieaii. 30.407	mean. 72.007	mean. 0.004	
				how much: 3	how much: 86	how much: 141		how much: 4	how much: 86	how much: 148	
				AS 7713	AS 8075	AS 21320		AS 7713	AS 8075		
				-1-1-0.000	-+	-+		-+			
microsoft com				SIU. 0.203	SIU. 0.322	sid. 0.300		SIU. 0.203	SIU. 0.364		
				mean: 58.763	mean: 0.885	mean: 75.554		mean: 58.431	mean: 0.928		
				how much: 3	how much: 151	how much 2		how much 4	how much: 161		
				10 7740		1011100112		10 01000	10 10 11 10 1		-
				AS //13	AS 21320	AS 13414		AS 21320	AS 13414		
				std: 0.301	std: 15.653	std: 3.840		std: 59.566	std: 5.679		
t.co				moon: 59 502	moon: 162 200	moon: 1 221		moon: 169 220	moon: 1 519		
1				1. ean. 30.302	1		1	1. an. 100.320			1
				how much: 2	how much: 87	how much: 159		how much: 90	how much: 161		
				AS 13238	AS 21320			AS 13238	AS 21320		
1	1			atd: 0.070	atd. 5 005		1	atd: 0.924	atd: 7 025		1
vandex.ru				SIU. U.278	siu. 0.020		1	siu. 0.034	siu. 7.200		1
,				mean: 0.911	mean: 87.851		1	mean: 0.956	mean: 91.499		1
1	1			how much: 162	how much 00		1	how much: 165	how much an		1
			I	AC 00001	AC 04000			AC 0000 f	AC 04000		
1	1			AS 32934	AS 21320		1	AD 32934	AS 21320		1
december of	1			std: 0.247	std: 0.566		1	std: 0.656	std: 8.095		1
acebook.com	1			mean: 0.021	mean: 74 410		1	mean: 0.061	mean 66 700		1
1	1			111ean. 0.931	111Can. /4.412		1	can. 0.301	inean. 00./29		1
1	1			now much: 169	how much: 2		1	now much: 169	how much: 2		1
				AS 21320	AS 23724		1	AS 21320	AS 23724		1
1	1			-10 21020			1	-10 21020			1
360.cn				sta: 45./21	sto: 0.242		1	510: 05.939	Sta: 0.276		1
1	1			mean: 270.758	mean: 0.923		1	mean: 286.902	mean: 0.916		1
1	1			how much: 89	how much: 165		1	how much: 89	how much: 167		1
L				1000 110011.00			l	1000 110011.00			
				AS 21320	AS 16509			AS 21320	AS 16509		
1	1			std: 17.882	std: 0.288		1	std: 20.024	std: 0.268		1
amazon.com				moon: 151.061	moon: 0.970		1	moon: 150.027	moon: 0.975		1
1	1			100an 101.901	can. 0.0/2		1	inean. 150.93/	, mean. 0.0/3		1
1				how much: 88	how much: 165		1	how much: 91	how much: 169		1
	1			AS 37963	AS 21320		1	AS 37963	AS 21320		1
1					-++- 70 540		1	-+++ 0 570			1
cedn net				sta: 0.260	sta: /0.513		1	Sta: 0.5/6	sta: 90.595		1
Gadminet				mean: 0.870	mean: 249.422		1	mean: 0.915	mean: 249.863		1
1	1			how much: 167	how much: 00		1	how much: 160	how much ac		1
				10/1/10011.10/	1000 110011. 92			10/0/11/00/1.109	1000 110011. 90		
1				AS 21320	AS 45102		1	AS 21320	AS 45102		1
				std: 59.573	std: 1.346		1	std: 51.696	std: 0.238		1
allexpress.com	1			mean: 102 000	mean: 1 001		1	mean: 197 510	mean: 0.000		1
1				1 11ean. 193.068			1	mean. 107.313			1
1				how much: 16	how much: 169		1	how much: 12	how much: 170		1
				AS 21320	AS 13414		1	AS 21320	AS 13414		
1				atd. 54 000	atd: 0.040		1	atd: 0.000	atd: 0.055		1
twitter com				sto: 54.922	sta: 0.218		1	SIQ: 0.068	SID: 0.255		1
				mean: 69.237	mean: 0.848		1	mean: 63.081	mean: 0.877		1
1	1			how much: 87	how much: 169		1	how much: 85	how much: 172		1
1	1			1.500 110011.07	1.07 11001. 100						1

Table 4.8: mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 378 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)

AS 20880		1	0			20	)-1			20	)-2	
	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4
	AS 15169				AS 15169				AS 15169			
aooale.ru	std: 14.030				std: 31.060				std: 33.376			
	mean: 33.632				mean: 36.549				mean: 38.360			
	now much: 286	10.0050			now much: 214				now much: 213			
	AS 14413	AS 3356			AS 3356				AS 3356			
linkedin.com	Std: 1.356	Std: 9.441			Std: 138.167				Std: 42.970			
	heur muchi 0	mean. 109.253			mean: 124.476				heur muchi 004			
	10W 110C11. 2	now much. 269			10W 11UC11. 217				10W ITIUCIT. 224			
	AS 3209				AS 3209				AS 3209			
wikipedia.org	SIG. 15.541				SIG. 110.039				SIU. 20.302			
	how much: 296				mean: 41.927				how much: 217			
	10W 110C11. 200				10W 110C11. 223	AC 2000			10W 110C11. 217	AC 2000		
	AS 3330				AS 3336	AS 3209			AS 3336	AS 3209		
twitch.tv	Siu. 10.043				Slu. 20.024	moon: 27 720			SIU. 23.404	moon: 25 020		
	how much: 202				how much: 174	how much: 25			how much: 176	how much: 42		
	AC 16160				AS 15160	now much. 55			AS 15160	HOW HILLCH. 43		
	etd: 17 462				etd: 157 901				etd: 17 717			
youtube.com	mean: 34 440				mean: 44 319				mean: 35 995			
	how much: 290				how much: 222				how much: 221			
	AS 15169	AS 3356			AS 15169	AS 3209			AS 15169	AS 3356	AS 6939	
	std: 16 028	std: 58 551			std: 21 895	std: 17 759			std: 17 149	std: 1 983	std: 25,356	
google.com.hk	mean: 35 080	mean: 70 900			mean: 31 568	mean: 42 500			mean: 29 607	mean: 33 189	mean: 47 579	
	how much: 231	how much: 4			how much: 215	how much: 2			how much: 225	how much: 3	how much: 3	
	AS 3356				AS 3356	AS 6939			AS 3356	AS 6939		
	std: 19.576				std: 23.116	std: 1.416			std: 17.960	std: 1.955		
pages.tmall.com	mean: 52.324				mean: 54.963	mean: 40.230			mean: 53,103	mean: 38.646		
	how much: 235				how much: 224	how much: 2			how much: 226	how much: 2		
	AS 3356	AS 25291	AS 3209	AS 6939	AS 3356	AS 25291	AS 3209	AS 6939	AS 6939	AS 25291	AS 3209	AS 3356
	std: 227.959	std: 92.133	std: 50.258	std: 51.406	std: 135.797	std: 113.464	std: 123.548	std: 3.214	std: 164.545	std: 121.205	std: 86.928	std: 136.537
jd.com	mean: 253.424	mean: 409.574	mean: 344.562	mean: 468.334	mean: 226.341	mean: 377.549	mean: 338.631	mean: 375.460	mean: 459.595	mean: 377.338	mean: 341.649	mean: 274.777
	how much: 2	how much: 98	how much: 127	how much: 12	how much: 7	how much: 41	how much: 171	how much: 8	how much: 8	how much: 46	how much: 174	how much: 6
	AS 3356	AS 6939			AS 3356	AS 6939			AS 3356	AS 6939		
A state server	std: 97.295	std: 4.411			std: 121.953	std: 75.197			std: 85.689	std: 32.099		
baldu.com	mean: 372.671	mean: 345.548			mean: 406.400	mean: 502.907			mean: 410.173	mean: 409.864		
	how much: 236	how much: 2			how much: 225	how much: 2			how much: 223	how much: 2		
	AS 3356				AS 3356				AS 3356			
	std: 97.576				std: 40.918				std: 67.396			
taobao.com	mean: 294.860				mean: 281.101				mean: 286.042			
	how much: 173				how much: 135				how much: 136			
					AS 16509				AS 3356	AS 16509		
potfliv com					std: 21.424				std: 0.003	std: 27.554		
Hetnix.com					mean: 47.021				mean: 24.973	mean: 47.910		
					how much: 50				how much: 2	how much: 53		
					AS 25291	AS 8075			AS 30132	AS 8075		
microsoft.com					std: 8.254	std: 31.300			std: 7.598	std: 7.032		
					mean: 23.968	mean: 71.303			mean: 18.324	mean: 24.009		
					how much: 3	how much: 2			how much: 2	how much: 3		
					AS 3356	AS 25291	AS 3209		AS 3356	AS 25291	AS 3209	
t.co					std: 78.394	std: 1.995	std: 118.451		std: 30.422	std: 1.175	std: 134.427	
					mean: 127.503	mean: 31.793	mean: 156.420		mean: 117.120	mean: 30.998	mean: 174.608	
					how much: 1/2	how much: 5	how much: 4/		how much: 1/5	how much: 4	how much: 45	
					AS 3356	AS 25291			AS 3356	AS 25291		
yandex.ru					Std: 18./94	Std: 33.682			Std: 8.401	Std: 55.136		
					mean: 34.374	herr much 50			mean. 31.741	herrer and the		
					AC 05001	10W 110C11. 33			10W 110C11. 170	AC 2000		
					MG 20291	MG 3209			MG 20291	AD 3209		
facebook.com					moon: 12 222	SIU. 303.222			SIU. 2.119	Siu. 4.055		
	1				how much: ?	how much: 4		1	how much: 3	how much: 5		
					AS 3356				AS 3356	AS 25291		
					etd: 85 598				etd: 89 210	etd: 42 245		
360.cn					mean: 227 916				mean: 245 306	mean: 72 062		
					how much: 212				how much: 218	how much: 2		
					AS 3356				AS 10886	AS 174	AS 3356	
					std: 37.594				std: 0.350	std: 0.297	std: 23.635	
amazon.com					mean: 126.081				mean: 11.995	mean: 28,268	mean: 127.033	
					how much: 220				how much: 4	how much: 2	how much: 221	
		-			AS 10886	AS 3356	AS 25291		AS 10886	AS 3356		
					std: 1.945	std: 145.110	std: 9.927		std: 2.241	std: 98,727		
csdn.net					mean: 12.113	mean: 376.930	mean: 21.090		mean: 12.266	mean: 365.227		
					how much: 5	how much: 211	how much: 2		how much: 3	how much: 210		
					AS 10886	AS 3356	AS 25291		AS 10886	AS 3356	AS 25291	
					std: 1.422	std: 17.228	std: 39.525		std: 0.962	std: 8.167	std: 48.634	
allexpress.com	1				mean: 12.379	mean: 163.634	mean: 179.482	1	mean: 11.821	mean: 158.727	mean: 187.213	
					how much: 5	how much: 112	how much: 53		how much: 6	how much: 109	how much: 41	
					AS 3356	AS 3209			AS 3356	AS 3209		
twitter com					std: 91.895	std: 67.543			std: 6.534	std: 47.078		
witter.com					mean: 34.503	mean: 45.353			mean: 21.734	mean: 46.958		
1	1				how much: 172	how much: 53		1	how much: 175	how much: 43		

Table 4.9: mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 20880 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)

### 4.6 Analysis 6 - different next hops comparison for every source and destination 29

AS 24398		10				20-1				20-2		
10 21000	novt hon 1	novt hon 2	novt hop 2	novthon 4	novthon 1	novthop 2	novt hop 2	nevt her 4	novt hon 1	novt hop 2	novt hop 2	novt hon 4
	next nop i	next nop 2	Tiext hop 5	next nop 4	next nop i	next nop 2	next nop 5	next nop 4	next nop i	next nop 2	Tiext hop 5	next nop 4
	AS 15169	AS 38022			AS 15169	AS 38022			AS 15169	AS 38022		
	std: 0.251	std: 26 924			std: 0 174	std: 7 624			std: 0 168	std: 7 598		
google.ru	0.0.0.201	000 440			0.01	0101 7102 1			0.0.0	010.7.000		
1	mean: 0.876	mean: 203.416			mean: 0.8/1	mean: 202.139			mean: 0.867	mean: 201./13		
	how much: 314	how much: 210			how much: 261	how much: 176			how much: 256	how much: 174		
	AS 14412	VC 38033			AS 14412	VC 38033			AS 14412	VC 38033		
	AS 14415	A3 30022			AS 14413	A3 30022			AS 14415	A3 30022		
links also a see	std: 0.195	std: 10.104			std: 0.177	std: 2.070			std: 0.180	std: 2.386		
linkeain.com	moon: 0.997	moon: 161 997			moon: 0.994	moon: 152 491			moon: 0.990	moon: 154 320		
	mean. 0.007	mean. 101.097			111ean. 0.094	mean. 152.401			mean. 0.000	mean. 154.529		
	how much: 311	how much: 210			how much: 254	how much: 176			how much: 252	how much: 174		
	ΔS 14907	AS 38022			AS 14907	AS 38022			ΔS 14907	AS 38022		
	740 14507	AC COULE			1014007	10000022			710 14507	AC COULE		
within a sline server	std: 0.202	std: 57.347			std: 0.184	std: 78.788			std: 0.215	std: 98.081		
wikipedia.org	mean: 0.900	mean: 277 787			mean: 0.891	mean: 289 183			mean: 0.881	mean: 285 798		
	incan: 0.500	1110411. 277.707			11100111 0.0001	1110411. 200.100			incan: 0.001	1110411. 200.700		
	how much: 304	how much: 210			how much: 245	how much: 1/6			how much: 240	how much: 1/4		
	AS 54113	AS 38022			AS 54113	AS 38022			AS 54113	AS 38022		
	-10 0 110	-10 00022			-10.0005	-10 00022			-100 01100	-10 00022		
twitch ty	SIG: 0.246	SIG: 0.420			SIG: 0.265	SIG: 0.351			SIG: 0.188	SIG: 0.370		
twitch.tv	mean: 0.898	mean: 1.903			mean: 0.914	mean: 1.884			mean: 0.892	mean: 1.890		
	how much: 201	how much: 210			how much: 210	how much: 176			how much: 022	how much: 174		
	now much. 301	now much. 210			now much. 219	now much. 176			now much. 233	now much. 174		
	AS 15169	AS 38022			AS 15169	AS 38022			AS 15169	AS 38022		
	ctd: 0.215	etd: 22.274			ctd: 0.169	std: 44.971			ctd: 0.224	ctd: 76 692		
voutube.com	310. 0.213	310.23.274			310.0.100	510. 44.071			510. 0.224	Siu. 70.002		
,	mean: 0.898	mean: 203.267			mean: 0.901	mean: 205.050			mean: 0.900	mean: 211.282		
	how much: 303	how much: 210			how much: 231	how much: 176			how much: 223	how much: 174		
		10 00000			How Haddin Eor							
	AS 15169	AS 38022			AS 15169	AS 38022			AS 15169	AS 38022		
	std: 0 189	std: 37 929			std: 0 189	std: 71 660			std: 0.321	std: 7 927		
google.com.hk			1					1	0.001		1	
1 -	mean: 0.825	mean: 204.083	1	1	mean: 0.851	mean: 235.552		1	mean: 0.864	mean: 200.007	1	
1	how much: 303	how much: 210	1		how much: 214	how much: 176		1	how much: 232	how much: 172	1	
	AC 6450	AC 20022	1		AC CAED	AC 20022			AC 6450	AC 20022		
1	AG 0403	NO 30022	1	1	A3 0433	MO 30022		1	A3 0433	NO 30022	1	
	std: 0.151	std: 49.422	1	1	std: 0.183	std: 59.458		1	std: 0.183	std: 48.990	1	
pages.tmall.com	mean: 0.974	mean: 077 765	1	1	mean: 0 001	mean: 206 007		1	mean: 0 991	mean: 070 701	1	
	mean. 0.074	mean. 277.703			inean. 0.301	mean. 200.307			mean. 0.001	mean. 272.731		
1	now much: 305	now much: 210	1		now much: 221	now much: 176		1	now much: 206	now much: 174	1	
	AS 133119	AS 38022			AS 133119	AS 38022			AS 133119	AS 38022		
		110 00022			110 100110	10 00022				110 00022		
id com	sta: 0.190	std: 28.254			sta: 0.174	std: 82.069			std: 0.300	std: 20.969		
Jucom	mean: 0.830	mean: 278.701			mean: 0.857	mean: 307.289			mean: 0.854	mean: 268.956		
	have an of 0	have much 010			have much oot	have much 170			have an abs 000	have much 174		
	now much: 310	now much: 210			now much: 221	now much: 176			now much: 223	now much: 174		
	AS 4808	AS 38022			AS 4808	AS 38022			AS 4808	AS 38022		
	atd: 0.157	atd: 10,420			atd: 0.166	atd: 25 671			atd: 0.159	atd: 27 226		
baidu com	SIG: 0.157	SIG: 12.430			SIG: 0.166	SIG: 35.671			SIG: 0.158	SIG: 37.326		
Daidd.com	mean: 0.862	mean: 256.226			mean: 0.897	mean: 272.601			mean: 0.876	mean: 259,448		
	how much: 200	how much: 210			how much: 224	how much: 176			how much: 220	how much: 174		
	now much. 308	now much. 210			110W ITIUCH. 224	now much. 176			110W 111uC11. 229	now much. 174		
	AS 37963	AS 38022			AS 37963	AS 38022			AS 37963	AS 38022		
	ctd: 0 155	ctd: 21.416			etd: 0.174	etd: 72.615			ctd: 0.212	ctd: 69 920		
taobao.com	310.0.100	3(0. 21.410			310.0.174	310.70.010			310.0.010	310.00.025		
	mean: 0.858	mean: 182.410			mean: 0.903	mean: 263.725			mean: 0.910	mean: 191.054		
	how much: 311	how much: 210			how much: 226	how much: 176			how much: 214	how much: 174		
	now mach. or i	now mach. 210			How Hiden: 220	now mach. 170			100 110011. 214			
					AS 16509	AS 38022			AS 16509	AS 38022		
					std: 0.563	std: 39 550			std: 0 187	std: 18 996		
netflix.com					0.000	0101 001000			0.0.0	070 100		
					mean: 0.889	mean: 277.150			mean: 0.842	mean: 2/3.489		
					how much: 223	how much: 176			how much: 225	how much: 174		
					AC 0075				AC 0075			
					A3 6075				A3 6075			
					std: 0.323				std: 0.165			
microsoft.com					moon: 0.970				moon: 0.821			
					mean. 0.070				mean. 0.021			
					how much: 226				how much: 229			
					AS 4826	AS 13414			AS 4826	AS 13414		
					110 1020				710 1020	110 10111		
teo					Std: 54.551	sta: 0.204			std: 71.998	std: 0.187		
	1	1	1		mean: 223,767	mean: 0.868		1	mean: 227,393	mean: 0.844	1	
					have much 170	h			h	have any she ooc		
L					now much: 176	now much: 232			now much: 174	now much: 226		
		1	I –		AS 13238	AS 38022			AS 13238	AS 38022		
1	1	1	1		std: 0 227	std: 102.064		1	std: 0 193	std: 93 688	1	
yandex.ru	1	1	1	1				1	0.0.0.100		1	
1.	1	1	1		mean: 0.910	mean: 314.609		1	mean: 0.884	mean: 314.018	1	
1	1	1	1	1	how much: 238	how much: 176		1	how much: 239	how much: 174	1	
					AC 22024				AC 20024			
1	1	1	1	1	NO 02934			1	NO 32934	1	1	
facaback com	1	1	1	1	std: 0.180			1	std: 0.182	1	1	
acebook.com	1	1	1		mean: 0.848			1	mean: 0.832		1	
1	1	1	1	1	how much ocd			1	how much occ	1	1	
					now much: 231				now much: 238			
					AS 38022	AS 23724			AS 38022	AS 23724		
1	1	1	1		ctd: 66 205	etd: 0.190		1	ctd: 41 027	ctd: 0.267	1	
360.cn	1	1	1	1	Siu. 00.395	SIU. U. 10U		1	510. 41.937	Stu. 0.207	1	
1	1	1	1		mean: 281.120	mean: 0.853		1	mean: 188.575	mean: 0.861	1	
1	1	1	1		how much: 174	how much: 243		1	how much: 174	how much: 244	1	
L				l		10.000000						
1	1	1	1	1	AS 16509	AS 38022		1	AS 16509	AS 38022	1	
1	1	1	1	1	std: 0 273	std: 28 094		1	std: 0 214	std: 1 862	1	
amazon.com	1	1			moon: 0.00F	moon: 100 100		1	moan: 0.010	moon: 104 EFO	1	
1	1	1				inean: 100.169		1	mean: 0.910	mean: 184.558	1	
1	1	1			how much: 244	how much: 176		1	how much: 239	how much: 174	1	
					AC 27062	AC 20022			AC 27062	AC 20022		
1	1	1	1	1	MO 0/903	MO 30022		1	NO 3/903	NO 30022	1	
	1	1	1	1	std: 0.162	std: 57.208		1	std: 0.178	std: 48.438	1	
csan.net	1	1	1	1	mean: 0.996	mean 267 216		1	mean: 0.977	mean: 100 100	1	
1	1	1	1	1		mean. 207.310		1	mean. 0.0//	mean. 199.130	1	
1	1	1	1	1	now much: 242	now much: 176		1	now much: 243	now much: 174	1	
	1			1	AS 45102	AS 38022			AS 45102	AS 38022		
1	1	1	1	1		-10 00022		1		-10 00022	1	
alievoress com	1	1	1	1	sta: 0.176	sta: 27.729		1	sta: 0.1/4	sta: 27.167	1	
anexpress.com	1	1	1	1	mean: 0.890	mean: 137.624		1	mean: 0.888	mean: 141.928	1	
1	1	1			how much: 050	how much: 170		1	how much: 040	how much: 174	1	
L					now much: 252	now much: 176			now much: 246	now much: 174		
					AS 4826	AS 13414			AS 4826	AS 13414		
1	1	1	1	1	std: 0.019	0.0 0 hts		1	std: 0.942	etd: 0.294	1	
twitter.com	1	1	1	1	310. 0.910	Siu. 0.200		1	SIU. 0.042	SIU. U.204	1	
	1	1	1	1	mean: 25.923	mean: 0.897		1	mean: 26.128	mean: 0.886	1	
1	1	1	1		how much: 176	how much: 255		1	how much: 174	how much: 247	1	
1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1		1.011 110011. 247	1	1

Table 4.10: mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 24398 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)

AS 24560		10			20-1				20-2		
	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3 next ho	4 next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4	next hop 1	next hop 2	next hop 3	next hop 4
	AC 0409	AS 15160		AS 0408	AS 15160			AS 0409	AS 15160		
	AS 9490	AS 15109		A3 9490	AS 15169			AS 9490	AS 15109		
googlo ru	std: 16.788	std: 5.900		std: 75.795	std: 68.764			std: 73.868	std: 28.808		
google.ru	mean: 245 223	mean: 255 169		mean: 261 594	mean: 270 149			mean: 257 157	mean: 262 324		
	how much: 99	how much: 99		how much: 220	how much: 126			how much: 170	how much: 94		
	now much. oo	now much. oo		now much. 250	now much. 130			now much. 172	now much. 64		
	AS 9498	AS 7713		AS 9498				AS 9498	AS 7713		
	std: 30.710	std: 10.105		std: 57.359				std: 53.287	std: 24.219		
linkedin.com	moon: 242 221	moon: 274 576		moon: 261 747				moon: 257 526	moon: 220 115		
	mean. 242.331	mean. 2/4.5/6		mean. 201.747				mean. 257.520	mean. 239.115		
	how much: 144	how much: 25		how much: 364				how much: 206	how much: 48		
	AS 9498	AS 13030		AS 9498				AS 9498	AS 13030		
	atd: 0.904	atd: 0.759		atd: 22.626				atd: 10 500	atd: 7,022		
wikipedia.org	Slu. 9.004	Slu. 0.756		Slu. 23.030				SIG. 10.509	Slu. 7.033		
	mean: 159.362	mean: 168.391		mean: 163.527				mean: 162.150	mean: 168.530		
	how much: 169	how much: 7		how much: 366				how much: 249	how much: 7		
	AC 0409	AS 1200		AS 0408	AS 1200			AS 0408	AS 1200		
	A3 3430	A3 1200		AS 3430	AS 1200			A3 3430	A3 1200		
twitch tv	std: 10.980	std: 1.996		std: 40.856	std: 3.198			std: 37.917	std: 1.694		
twitch.tv	mean: 151.758	mean: 158.995		mean: 144.644	mean: 163.462			mean: 149.810	mean: 156.667		
	how much: 156	how much: 20		how much: 310	how much: 56			how much: 233	how much: 23		
	AC 0400	AC 15100		101110011010	AC 15100			AC 0400	AC 15100		
	AS 9498	AS 15169		AS 9498	AS 15169			AS 9498	AS 15169		
	std: 13.049	std: 8.240		std: 13.557	std: 13.768			std: 68.345	std: 19.568		
youlube.com	mean: 245 417	mean: 257 735		mean: 253 545	mean: 261 370			mean: 262 001	mean: 260 560		
	have much 70	have much 100		have much 050	have much 110			have much 100	here much 07		
	now much: 76	now much: 100		now much: 250	now much: 116			now much: 169	now much: 87		
	AS 9498	AS 15169		AS 9498	AS 15169			AS 9498	AS 15169		
	std: 26.646	std: 7.963		std: 73.219	std: 27.841			std: 78.426	std: 117.445	1	
google.com.hk	moon: 046 170	moon: 051 440		moon: 060 100	moon: 064 000			moon: 069 EAF	moon: 070 014	1	
1	mean. 240.1/2	111ean. 201.446		111ean: 200.169	inean. 204.323			mean. 203.045	mean. 2/3.014	1	
1	how much: 55	how much: 120	1 1	how much: 266	how much: 100			how much: 161	how much: 93	1	
	AS 9498	AS 6453		AS 9498	AS 6453			AS 9498	AS 6453		
1	ctd- 8 062	etd: 2 05/		std: 14 716	etd: 7 917			etd: 29.042	etd: 0.049	1	
pages.tmall.com	510.0.502	510. 2.334		510. 14.710	310.7.317			510. 20.042	510. 5.540		
1	mean: 161.568	mean: 1/2.891		mean: 170.669	mean: 1/9.804			mean: 1/4.245	mean: 168.654		
	how much: 116	how much: 60		how much: 323	how much: 42			how much: 200	how much: 56		
	AC 9498	AS 6762		AS 9498	AS 6762			AS 9498	AS 6762		
	10 0400	10 07 02		110 3450	100702			10 04 00	10 07 02		
id com	SIG: 26.033	SIU: 16.653		sid: 91.093	SIG: 47.676			510: 95.419	SIG: 13.652		
Jacobin	mean: 328.325	mean: 348.939		mean: 359.621	mean: 360.634			mean: 318.067	mean: 344.725		
	how much: 130	how much: 46		how much: 320	how much: 46			how much: 208	how much: 45		
	10.0400	101 110011 10		1000000	101111001110			10001000	101 110011 10		
	AS 9498	AS 4637		AS 9498	AS 4637			AS 9498	AS 4637		
halds and	std: 24.510	std: 17.124		std: 32.740	std: 9.150			std: 39.392	std: 20.607		
baldu.com	mean: 278.249	mean: 324.212		mean: 331.779	mean: 334,104			mean: 321,423	mean: 316.706		
	how much: 09	how much: 77		how much: 207	how much: 50			how much: 191	how much: 71		
	now much: 98	now much: 77		now much: 307	now much: 59			now much: 181	now much: 71		
	AS 9498	AS 174		AS 9498	AS 174			AS 9498	AS 174		
	std: 58 084	std: 70.348		std: 87 827	std: 78 700			std: 112 118	std: 57 941		
taobao.com	310. 00.004	310.70.040		310.07.027	310.70.700			310.112.110	310. 071.541		
	mean: 462.772	mean: 399.587		mean: 448.783	mean: 445.866			mean: 386.109	mean: 371.524		
	how much: 116	how much: 56		how much: 277	how much: 80			how much: 197	how much: 52		
				AS 9498	AS 16509			AS 9498	AS 16509		
				-1000100	710 10000			-140 0100	-14, 0,000		
netflix com				SIG: 51.553	SIG: 7.593			SIG: 36.297	SIG: 8.200		
ficture.com				mean: 175.094	mean: 180.413			mean: 174.976	mean: 170.386		
				how much: 257	how much: 43			how much: 208	how much: 11		
miorocoft.com											
microsoft.com											
				AS 9498				AS 9498			
				std: 28.722				std: 74.288			
t.co				moon: 092 152				moon: 290.071			
				111ean. 202.132				mean. 203.371			
				how much: 333				how much: 253			
				AS 9498	AS 13238			AS 9498	AS 13238		
				std: 68 705	std: 134 737			std: 126 740	std: 5 447		
yandex.ru			1 1	310.00.700	017 115			001 100	310. 0.447	1	
-				mean: 199.130	mean: 217.115			mean: 201.490	mean: 193.147		
1				how much: 262	how much: 70			how much: 192	how much: 62	1	
				AS 9498							
1			1 1	atd: 10.605						1	
facebook.com				SIU. 10.030	1					1	
				mean: 180.569	1					1	
1				how much: 6	1					1	
			1 1	AS 9499	AS 174			AS 9498	ΔS 174		
1			1 1	-14.000.007						1	
360 cn				std: 203.887	std: 165.072			Std: 187.916	Std: 174.630		
				mean: 492.248	mean: 470.892			mean: 461.983	mean: 478.547	1	
				how much: 263	how much: 62			how much: 189	how much: 52	1	
				AC 0400	AC 0057			AC 0400	AC 0057		
				A5 9498	AS 3257			AS 9498	AS 3257		
2002200.000				std: 43.736	std: 5.414			std: 19.759	std: 3.839	1	
amazon.com				mean: 257.538	mean: 243.275			mean: 258.168	mean: 285.668	1	
				how much: 202	how much: 10			how much: 010	how much: 40		
				1000 110011: 293	10W ITIUCIT. 40	<b>↓</b>		10W IIIUCII. 213	now much. 40		
1				AS 9498	AS 174			AS 9498	AS 174	1	
			1 1	std: 174.782	std: 155.652			std: 164.456	std: 149.715	1	
csdn.net				mean: 504 671	mean: 507 370			mean: 436 303	mean 462 490	1	
1				hau much 017	hammar 007.079			have much 107	hau much 50	1	
				now much: 247	now much: 66			now much: 18/	now much: 52	L	
				AS 9498				AS 9498			
				std: 56.681				std: 30.219		1	
aliexpress.com				moon: 070 074	1			moon: 070 945		1	
1				inean: 2/9.8/1	1			mean. 2/2.345		1	
1				how much: 320	1			how much: 203		1	
				AS 9498				AS 9498			
1			1 1	std: 95 291				std: 84 911		1	
twitter.com				510. 55.201				310.04.311		1	
				mean: 190.427	1			mean: 190.462		1	
1			1 1	I how much: 333	1	1		how much: 254	1	1	

Table 4.11: mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 24560 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)

### 4.6 Analysis 6 - different next hops comparison for every source and destination 31

AS 35807		10				20-1				20-2		
	next hon 1	next hon 2	next hon 3	next hon 4	next hon 1	next hon 2	next hon 3	next hon 4	next hon 1	next hon 2	next hop 3	next hon 4
	AC 15160	AC 49076	next nop o	полтнор 4	AC 15160	AC 49076	next hop o	полтнор ч	AC 15160	AC 49076	полттор о	полтнор 4
	A3 15109	A3 46076			AS 15109	A3 40070			AS 15109	A3 40070		
anoale ru	std: 2.061	std: 4.126			std: 1.125	std: 19.639			std: 1.684	std: 2.009		
googiona	mean: 36.583	mean: 37.356			mean: 36.318	mean: 42.302			mean: 36.298	mean: 36.924		
	how much: 164	how much: 246			how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 86	how much: 172		
	AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
	std: 51 100	std: 47 271			std: 50 301	std: 48 802			std: 21 047	std: 8 423		
linkedin.com	maan: 100.024	moon: 114 202			moon: 10E 000	moon: 100 747			moon: 110 E47	moon: 11E 002		
	mean. 120.234	111edii. 114.392			mean. 125.035	mean. 120.747			inean. 110.547	mean. 115.995		
	now much: 82	now much: 328			now much: 87	now much: 1/4			now much: 86	now much: 1/2		
	AS 20764	AS 48076			AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
within a star and	std: 2.458	std: 4.468			std: 20.413	std: 0.598			std: 1.381	std: 36.528		
wikipedia.org	mean: 37.596	mean: 38.100			mean: 41.434	mean: 33.897			mean: 33.869	mean: 37.717		
	how much: 328	how much: 82			how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 86	how much: 86		
	AS 49076	AS 0002			AS 49076	AS 0002			AS 49076	AS 0002		
	A3 40070	AG 3002			A3 40070	AS 3002			A3 40070	AG 5002		
twitch.tv	SIG: 4.968	SIG: 1.578			SIG: 46.617	SIG: 0.557			SID: 1.747	SIG: 25.600		
	mean: 34.058	mean: 33./29			mean: 46.169	mean: 33.219			mean: 33.843	mean: 35.138		
	how much: 82	how much: 328			how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 86	how much: 172		
	AS 15169	AS 48076			AS 15169	AS 48076			AS 15169	AS 48076		
	std: 11.928	std: 3.167			std: 0.933	std: 21.319			std: 10.942	std: 2.056		
youtube.com	mean: 37 511	mean: 36 981			mean: 35,978	mean: 42 470			mean: 37 399	mean: 36 701		
	how much: 164	how much: 046			how much: 97	how much: 174			how much: 96	how much: 171		
	10W 110C11. 104	10W 11UC11. 246			100 1001. 87	10W 11UC11. 174			HOW HILUCH. 66	10W 110C11. 171		
	AS 15169	AS 48076		1	AS 15169	AS 48076	1		AS 15169	AS 48076		
accale com bk	std: 10.557	std: 4.428		1	std: 0.229	std: 13.281	1		std: 0.320	std: 2.293		
googio.com.nk	mean: 36.870	mean: 37.435		1	mean: 36.632	mean: 40.957	1		mean: 34.645	mean: 34.764		
1	how much: 144	how much: 226			how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 86	how much: 172		
	AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002	1	
	ctd: 4.002	ctd: 0.242			ctd: 24,006	etd: 2,272			ctd: 5 477	ctd: 10.082		
pages.tmall.com	510. 4.032	510. 3.342			510.24.000	510. 3.372			510. 5.477	Stu. 10.303		
1	mean: 64.633	mean: 65.233			mean: 70.452	mean: 61.472			mean: 62.998	mean: 62.677		
	how much: 62	how much: 248			how much: 87	how much: 1/4			how much: 86	how much: 1/1		
	AS 20764	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
	std: 26.163	std: 44.100			std: 61.608	std: 50.186			std: 47.267	std: 36.913		
ja.com	mean: 355.726	mean: 368.095			mean: 411.562	mean: 384.816			mean: 370,144	mean: 380.891		
	how much: 144	how much: 42			how much: 70	how much: 174			how much: 62	how much: 96		
	AC 40070	AC 0000			AC 40070	AC 0000			AC 40070	AC 0000		
	AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
baidu com	std: 60.076	std: 60.706			std: 34.284	std: 29.685			std: 35.772	std: 45.965		
balda.com	mean: 423.268	mean: 406.425			mean: 439.741	mean: 428.043			mean: 417.727	mean: 413.387		
	how much: 62	how much: 248			how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 86	how much: 172		
	AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
	std: 35.241	std: 41,177			std: 41.017	std: 58.326			std: 49.411	std: 62.327		
taobao.com	moon: 249 429	moon: 249 522			moon: 262 252	moon: 258,060			moon: 260 242	moon: 264 709		
	heurensels 00	heures 243.332			heures 07	heures 474			heures 00	heuren 171		
	now much: 62	now much: 248			now much: 87	now much: 174			now much: 86	now much: 171		
					AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
notfliv com					std: 51.428	std: 25.877			std: 3.212	std: 2.435		
netilix.com					mean: 65.337	mean: 53.551			mean: 51.550	mean: 51.674		
					how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 85	how much: 86		
microsoft.com												
meroson.com					AC 4907C	AC 0000			AC 4907C	AC 0000		
					AS 40070	AS 9002			A3 40070	AS 9002		
t.co					SIG: 88.766	Std: 7.339			Std: 11.528	Std: 4.941		
1					mean: 154./33	mean: 133.652			mean: 133.136	mean: 134.559		
					how much: 87	how much: 174			how much: 86	how much: 86		
					AS 13238	AS 48076			AS 13238	AS 48076		
1	1			1	std: 134.028	std: 31.246	1		std: 13.961	std: 2.112		
yandex.ru	1		1	1	mean: 25,349	mean: 16.777	1	1	mean: 13,954	mean: 11.948		
1	1		1	1	how much: 97	how much: 179	1	1	how much: 95	how much: 179		
facobook com												
acebuok.com					AO 40070	40.0000			40.40070	40.0000		
	1			1	AS 48076	AS 9002	1		AS 48076	AS 9002		
360 cn	1			1	std: 99.101	std: 31.204	1		std: 70.761	std: 54.217		
000.011	1		1	1	mean: 231.884	mean: 199.263	1	1	mean: 240.126	mean: 227.461		
	1			1	how much: 87	how much: 174	1		how much: 86	how much: 172		
	1	i i	1	1	AS 48076	AS 9002	1	1	AS 48076	AS 9002		1
	1			1	std: 22 682	std: 3 228	1		std: 12 353	std: 6 558		
amazon.com	1			1	mean: 137 022	mean: 127 254	1		mean: 127 526	mean: 127 500		
	1			1	how must 07	how much 171	1		how much 00	how much 170		
					now much: 87	now much: 1/4			now much: 86	now much: 1/2		
1	1		1	1	AS 48076	AS 9002	1	1	AS 48076	AS 9002		
codn net	1			1	std: 77.983	std: 24.184	1		std: 35.383	std: 65.810		
- souri.net	1		1	1	mean: 233.600	mean: 204.055	1	1	mean: 233.457	mean: 234.846		
	1			1	how much: 87	how much: 174	1		how much: 86	how much: 172		
	-				AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002		
1	1			1	std: 26 509	std: 8 521	1		std: 10 437	std: 7 004		
aliexpress.com	1		1	1	moon: 107 500	maan: 195 007	1	1	moon: 195 004	maan: 191 700		
· ·	1			1	mean: 197.503	mean: 185.367	1		mean: 185.061	mean: 181./63		
L	L				riow much: 87	now much: 174			riow much: 86	now much: 172		L
					AS 48076	AS 9002			AS 48076	AS 9002	AS 29216	
twitter com	1			1	std: 68.478	std: 2.431	1		std: 2.601	std: 3.468	std: 0.071	
twitter.com	1			1	mean: 46.626	mean: 31.999	1		mean: 33.168	mean: 32.184	mean: 1.109	
1	1		1	1	how much: 87	how much: 174	1	1	how much: 86	how much: 85	how much: 2	
1	1	1	1	1			1	1				1

Table 4.12: mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 35807 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)

AS 43996	novt hop 1	1 novthon 2	0 novt hop 2	novt hon 4	novt hon 1	20 novthon 2	)-1	novt hop 4	novt hop 1	20 novthon 2	)-2 novthon 2	novt hop 4
	AS 7712	1200 AS 1200	next nop 3	next nop 4	AC 7712	1 next hop 2	AS 1200	next nop 4	AS 7712	1200 AS 1200	next nop 3	next nop 4
	etd: 35 388	etd: 0 151			etd: 36 921	etd: 0.481	etd: 0 187		etd: 36 425	etd: 0.173		
google.ru	mean: 51, 195	mean: 7.027			mean: 50.293	mean: 248.038	mean: 7.095		mean: 50,159	mean: 7.042		
	how much: 210	how much: 105			how much: 175	how much: 88	how much: 88		how much: 176	how much: 88		
	AS 3356				AS 3356	AS 4637			AS 3356			
linkodin com	std: 37.011				std: 37.914	std: 6.081			std: 37.203			
IIIIKeuiii.com	mean: 53.714				mean: 54.656	mean: 227.093			mean: 53.918			
	how much: 314				how much: 264	how much: 88			how much: 264			
	AS 12956	AS 1200			AS 12956	AS 4637	AS 1200		AS 12956	AS 1200		
wikipedia.org	std: 1.3/5	std: 5.261			std: 2.400	std: 32.350	std: 5.5/0		std: 1.000	std: 5.261		
	how much: 105	Inean: 5.720			how much: 99	how much: 99	how much: 176		how much: 99	Inean. 0.210		
	AS 6461	AS 3356	AS 7022		AS 6/61	AS 3356	AS 7022	AS 4637	AS 6461	AS 3356	AS 7022	
	std: 0.592	std: 0.161	std: 0.303		std: 0.102	std: 0.077	std: 0.066	std: 0.228	std: 0.065	std: 0.076	std: 0.064	
twitch.tv	mean: 1.260	mean: 1.972	mean: 0.781		mean: 1.188	mean: 1.960	mean: 0.984	mean: 0.972	mean: 1.197	mean: 1.968	mean: 0.980	
	how much: 105	how much: 105	how much: 105		how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	
	AS 7713	AS 1200			AS 7713	AS 4637	AS 1200		AS 7713	AS 1200		
voutube.com	std: 35.910	std: 0.129			std: 35.572	std: 91.921	std: 0.111		std: 35.266	std: 0.129		
,	mean: 50.533	mean: 7.108			mean: 50.879	mean: 258.090	mean: 7.150		mean: 51.209	mean: 7.150		
	how much: 210	how much: 105			how much: 1/6	how much: 88	how much: 88		how much: 1/6	how much: 88		
	AS //13	AS 1200			AS 7713	AS 4637	AS 1200		AS 7713	AS 1200		
google.com.hk	siu. 35.742 mean: 47.376	stu. 0.131			siu. 30.303	sid: 10.535	SIU. 1.429 mean: 10 227		siu. 34.656	SIU. U. 130		
	how much: 210	how much: 105			how much: 174	how much: 88	how much: 88		how much: 176	how much: 88		
	AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 6762		AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 4637	AS 6762	AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 6762	
	std: 0.618	std: 0.425	std: 0.864		std: 4.221	std: 1.856	std: 48.353	std: 3.018	std: 0.315	std: 0.290	std: 1.627	
pages.tmail.com	mean: 96.602	mean: 24.370	mean: 32.834		mean: 97.146	mean: 35.776	mean: 245.187	mean: 34.863	mean: 96.524	mean: 24.323	mean: 31.798	
	how much: 105	how much: 105	how much: 105		how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	
	AS 12956	AS 1299	AS 6762		AS 12956	AS 1299	AS 4637	AS 6762	AS 12956	AS 1299	AS 6762	
id.com	std: 18.114	std: 326.176	std: 257.471		std: 53.501	std: 37.357	std: 126.562	std: 12.116	std: 30.705	std: 6.517	std: 6.260	
,	mean: 238.6/8	mean: 414.030	mean: 356.944		mean: 263.964	mean: 322.386	mean: 153.949	mean: 300.595	mean: 256./02	mean: 329.708	mean: 296.995	
	1000 HIUCH, 105	10W IIIUCII: 105	10W 110C11. 105	AC 2256	10W INUCII: 00	10W 110C11. 00	10W 110C11. 00	10W 110C11. 00	10W ITIUCII. 00	10W 11UC11. 00	10W 110C11. 00	AC 2256
	std: 12 023	std: 2 229	std: 20.811	std: 33 713	std: 11 622	std: 32 591	std: 42 373	std: 9.968	std: 20 991	std: 47 080	std: 6 255	std: 35 790
baidu.com	mean: 250,985	mean: 298,280	mean: 304.672	mean: 401,195	mean: 244.878	mean: 376.874	mean: 127.652	mean: 298.176	mean: 254.557	mean: 346.082	mean: 297.634	mean: 374,999
	how much: 105	how much: 5	how much: 105	how much: 100	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 87	how much: 2	how much: 88	how much: 86
	AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 6762		AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 4637	AS 6762	AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 6762	
taabaa aam	std: 17.643	std: 3.752	std: 12.284		std: 14.081	std: 33.796	std: 75.929	std: 29.992	std: 4.553	std: 4.266	std: 6.803	
laubau.com	mean: 282.405	mean: 290.423	mean: 306.396		mean: 278.669	mean: 309.552	mean: 213.792	mean: 320.631	mean: 278.769	mean: 293.341	mean: 305.681	
	how much: 104	how much: 105	how much: 105		how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	
					AS 12956	AS 4637	AS //13	AS 1200	AS 12956	AS 7/13	AS 1200	
netflix.com					SIU: 1.925	siu. 35.000 mean: 187.890	sid: 0.230	SIU. 5.675	stu: 22.013 mean: 98.245	sid. 0.193	siu. 0.765	
					how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	
microsoft.com					now maon. oo	nou maoni oo	now maon. co	now machine oo	now machine oo	now machine oo	now machine oo	
					AS 7713							
					std: 51.015							
1.00					mean: 227.397							
					how much: 88							
					AS 7713	AS 4637	AS 1200		AS 7713	AS 1200		
yandex.ru					std: 50.058	std: 99.613	std: 3.827		std: 40.528	std: 4.876		
<sup>•</sup>					mean: 81.447	mean: 291.515	mean: 32.049		mean: 77.462	mean: 32.548		
facebook.com					now much. 176	now much. 66	now much. 66		now much. 176	now much. 66		
					AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 4637	AS 6762	AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 6762	+
					std: 45.380	std: 90.214	std: 27.719	std: 98.166	std: 54.625	std: 116.450	std: 38.953	
360.cn					mean: 267.886	mean: 341.351	mean: 213.028	mean: 433.443	mean: 272.816	mean: 323.359	mean: 337.801	
					how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	
					AS 7713	AS 3356	AS 4637	AS 6762	AS 7713	AS 3356	AS 6762	
amazon.com					std: 0.101	std: 10.796	std: 59.671	std: 0.696	std: 0.107	std: 1.397	std: 0.686	
					mean: 0./21	mean: 107.0/1	mean: 244.144	mean: 96.597	mean: 0.765	mean: 107.813	mean: 97.285	
					now much: 86	now much: 88	now much: 88	now much: 88	now much: 87	now much: 88	now much: 88	
					A5 12950	AS 3330	A5 4037	AS 0/02	AS 12950	AS 3330	AS 0/02	
csdn.net					mean: 270 733	mean: 425 051	mean: 261 525	mean: 442 907	mean: 307 023	mean: 394 134	mean: 355 878	
					how much: 88	how much: 87	how much: 88	how much: 87	how much: 85	how much: 85	how much: 86	
					AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 4637	AS 6762	AS 12956	AS 3356	AS 6762	1
-					std: 1.090	std: 9.345	std: 9.537	std: 6.728	std: 20.850	std: 7.632	std: 5.915	
anexpress.com					mean: 71.698	mean: 146.511	mean: 176.624	mean: 140.937	mean: 74.934	mean: 147.032	mean: 136.492	
					how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	how much: 88	
					AS 7713	AS 1200			AS 7713	AS 1200		
twitter.com					Sta: 3.063	Sta: 1.501			sta: 3.316	sta: 1.463		
					how much: 176	how much: 99			how much: 97	how much: 99		
			1	1	now much. 176	1 10W 110C11. 00	1	1	10W 110C11. 67	1010 110011.00	1	1

Table 4.13: mean and standard deviation for all RTTs of all next hops in AS 43996 (standard deviation and mean in milliseconds)



Figure 4.1: distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 378



Figure 4.2: distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 20880



Figure 4.3: distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 24398



Figure 4.4: distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 24560



Figure 4.5: distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 35807



Figure 4.6: distribution of the probes and next hops that had the shortest RTT for AS 43996



Figure 4.7: CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 378



CDF for all standard deviations of AS 20880

Figure 4.8: CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 20880



Figure 4.9: CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 24398



Figure 4.10: CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 24560



Figure 4.11: CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 35807



Figure 4.12: CDF graphs for all experimentation runs of AS 43996



Figure 4.13: all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 378



Figure 4.14: all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 20880



Figure 4.15: all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 24398



Figure 4.16: all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 24560



Figure 4.17: all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 35807



Figure 4.18: all probe CDFs for every experimentation run on AS 43996

## **Chapter 5**

# Discussion

### 5.1 Inter-AS differences

Looking at the CDF graphs for the whole AS (tables 4.7 - 4.12) we can see clear differences showing the possibility for congestion is bigger in some of them. Especially AS 24560 (table 4.10) and AS 20880 (table 4.8) where around twenty percent of all communication had a standard deviation of more than 100 milliseconds. Interestingly AS 24560 is the biggest one we used for our project (see table 2.1). In figure 4.16 we can also see that every probe in this AS has high latency conncetions. At some points the last RTT of the traceroute took nearly one second to reach the probe again. Of course for example AS 43996 (figure 4.18) has also pretty high mean and maximum RTT values but the connections are more stable as can be seen by the lower standard deviations. Interesting is that ASes 20880, 24398, 35807 and 43996 have clearly lower standard deviations on the *20-1* experiment run (see figures 4.8, 4.9, 4.11 and 4.12). The cause for this is hard to determine especially as they were conducted on different days (see table 2.3).

Table 4.1 gives an interesting view at how some of the ASes have only one next hop that is viable (especially 20880 and 24560) and thus don't have a change in the next best hop. This can also be seen in tables 4.2 for AS 20880 and 4.4 for AS 24560. Each has one next hop that dominates the others (3356 for AS 20880 and 9498 for AS 24560).

## 5.2 Multi-path routing evaluation

The data needed here is mostly given in tables 4.8 - 4.13. For multi-path routing to be feasible the given paths need to be on the same level considering latency and stability of the connection. We have examples where this is undoubtedly the case (i.e. AS 43996) and where it is not (i.e. 24398). Let's take a look at the latter first.

AS 378 (table 4.8) and AS 24398 (table 4.8) fall in this category. Both have two different next hops for most of their destinations. These are used pretty evenly, one a bit more as several probes will be using it as its route. For most of them the problems begin with the standard deviation and thus the possible congestion on the way which differ noticeably. But what differentiates them the most is the mean time it takes the traceroute packet to loop back to the probe. For some of them it is three orders of magnitude higher than their counterpart, especially in AS 24398. As an example we can take the connection from AS 24398 to baidu.com. In all three experiment runs the traffic over next hop AS 4808 had a mean time around 0.87 ms where as the packets over AS 38022 needed more than 250 ms on average to reach the website and loop back. On AS 378 this is even worse with AS 4808 giving around 0.95 ms and AS 21320 giving 350 ms of delay. This is mostly a problem for eventual TCP connections. If you would connect to baidu.com from AS 378 the packets would be given an ordering which would be re-established when receiving them. If now some of these packets took 300 ms instead of 0.8 ms to reach the destination everything else would have to wait for them to get the whole data set again. For UDP this is not a problem, as packet ordering is not a concern here. See [18] for an analysis of UDP and TCP in multi-path routing.

Now let's take a look at examples where the paths are comparably. For AS 24560, 35807 and

43996 (table 4.11, 4.12 and 4.13 respectively) we have routes that are offering nearly the same delay and almost the same possibility for congestion. Interesting here is that AS 24560 and AS 35807 have connections which are not that fast but because all their paths take around the same time these would be viable again. AS 43996 on the other hand has for most of its connections pretty low delay and most importantly it has a lot of different next hops. Together with AS 24398 its shortest RTTs are the most evenly distributed over all next hops (see figure 4.3 for AS 24398 and figure 4.6 for AS 43996) showing its viability for multi-path routing. What is intriguing here, in experiment run 20-1 we have for nearly all destinations one additional next hop *AS 4637*. It does not appear before nor after. Unfortunately it is not possible to evaluate exactly why, but it is possible that this is due to a short lived routing change for this AS.

This leaves AS 20880 (table 4.9). At first glance we can already see that for almost all destinations there is only one path used. But even the sparingly additional routes are used only a handful of times during an experiment run. For the rare case that there are two (or more) paths that are equally used they are actually pretty similar. See jd.com as an example here. Next hops 25291 and 3209 are pretty close concerning standard deviation and mean time. But that doesn't make this AS a good candidate for multi-path routing. Why this AS was chosen even though it is not multi-homed for most of the destination will be explained in section 5.3.

How fickle the different ASes are can also be seen in tables 4.2 - 4.7. Especially for AS 20880 (table 4.3) which has a varying amount of next hops during the experiment runs. As we already saw this AS has a lot of next hops that pop up for a small timeslot and then don't appear again. In contrary we have AS 43996 (table 4.7) where we can see how consistent it was over all runs.

### 5.3 Difficulties and how to avoid them

We already explained some problem cases in section 3.1.5 and most importantly there is the part about bogon IPs. During the preliminary experiments we conducted (see section 3.1.4) we would see how many different next hops were leading from a source AS to every website. Because these IPs gave us an AS that didn't indicate a different path it tricked us into thinking that an AS would be viable for evaluation. This is especially the case for AS 20880. As discussed eliminating these IPs gives you the real next hop when looking at the AS-path. Unfortunately this was discovered too late into the project to gather new ASes for testing thus we had to work with the results we got.

Another problem that was discovered too late is that not all ASes are reliably able to reach certain destinations (see tables 4.11, 4.12 and 4.13 for examples). The most likely cause for this is the IP that was chosen for each website. As described in section 2.4 dig was used when determining the IP addresses. This was done in Zurich, Switzerland. The source ASes are situated all over the globe and when accessing a certain website, are quite possibly only able to access them via a given IP prefix. To circumvent this the preliminary experiments should have been run on these twenty destinations from the beginning and not on randomly chosen websites. This would also allow for them to run for a longer time and thus give the ability to see exactly which ASes are able to connect to them and which do not.

This leads into another problem that stems from this being a semester project. The time given here is limited. For every website/source pairing we have at maximum three different data sets (10, 20-1, 20-2). To get a clearer picture more experiment runs would be ideal.

## **Chapter 6**

# **Conclusion & Outlook**

## 6.1 Conclusion

We showed that multi-path routing from a performance standpoint is worth further investigation. There are most definitely ASes that meet the requirements for sending traffic over several paths. Most importantly we established an efficient work flow which allows the running of an experiment on the RIPE Atlas platform and its further analysis. This allows further research to be conducted in a much faster manner and for them to concentrate on more important tasks.

## 6.2 Outlook

Some future improvements were already discussed in section 5.3. If more time was available we would look for more ASes to run measurements from and as already mentioned also gather more data for every source/destination-pairing through more experiment runs.

Future research would need the evaluation of different routing algorithms. Some examples can be seen at [18]. Further experiments could take a look at the ideal network structure for multipath routing (see [13]).

#### Acknowledgement

I want to thank my supervisor Prof. Laurent Vanbever and tutor Maria Apostolaki for their encouragment and help during this project. I learnt a lot and am grateful the opportunity. Also I want to thank my girlfriend for her patience during the writing process.

## Appendix A

# **Timetable of project**

The following tables show the timetable that was proposed at the beginning (table A.1) and the sequence of events that ultimately lead to this report (table A.2).

Week number	Schedule
Week 1	Familiarize with the RIPE Atlas platform
Week 2 & 3	Find interesting stub networks (multi-homed & with ATLAS probes & static routing)
Week 4	Perform measurements from multiple stub networks for multiple days
Week 5	Analyze data with respect to path selection (static / dynamic)
Week 6 & 7	Analyze data with respect to performance in time per destination
Week 8	Predict performance or ranking or performance difference
Week 9 & 10	Predict optimal routing decisions
Week 11 & 12	Write report

Table A.1: proposed timetable at the start of the project

Week number	Schedule
Week 1	Evaluation of ASes and probes in them
Week 2	Modifying scripts and making first measurements on RIPE Atlas
Week 3	Writing scripts to pull experiment data via API and writing into files
Week 4	First plots to see different RTTs of connections, started first 24 hour experiments
Week 5	Evaluation to see if experiments up to now are actually correctly done
Week 6	Writing scripts for analysis (make_analysis.py)
Week 7	First CDF plots (not enough data points)
Week 8	CDFs are correct now, more 24 hour experiments
Week 9	New ASes found for experiments (378 & 24560), repeated experiments for them.
	Started new experiments (20 destinations)
Week 10	Continued new experiments (still 20-1), written half of the final analysis scripts
Week 11	Finished all analysis scripts, started making the results concise and humanly-
	readable
Week 12	Meeting with Prof. Vanbever. On his behest started second twenty destination exper-
	iment run (20-2)
Week 13 & 14	Writing of report. In process found the bogon IPs and correct the
	pull_experiment_data.py script.

Table A.2: Actual timetable

# Appendix B

# Originalproblem

#### **Multi-path routing**

Measure performance difference across alternative next hops

Over the years Internet is becoming flatter, in that network operators are continually trying to peer directly with more ASes in order to achieve better performance. This increase in alternative paths does not come with a change in the mon- itoring or routing infrastructure though. As such, our understanding of the dynamic characteristics of the alternative paths is limited. The purpose of this project is to investigate and analyse the performance difference among alternative next hops from stub ASes. In particular, we are intersected in understanding the temporal and spatial patterns of perfor- mance difference among alternative paths and across different destinations. Using this knowledge we can then model and predict the performance difference of alternative paths.

# Bibliography

- [1] apmaria@ethz.ch. My Supervisor.
- [2] Alexa top 500 sites on the web. https://www.alexa.com/topsites. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [3] Caida data server. http://data.caida.org/datasets/as-relationships/. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [4] Center for applied data analysis. http://www.caida.org/home/. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [5] Internet assigned numbers authority. https://www.iana.org/. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [6] Ip info lookup tool won't show the correct search engine if no as is entered in the url. https://ipinfo.io/AS%20378. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [7] Ripe atlas. https://atlas.ripe.net/. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [8] Ripe ris raw data server. http://data.ris.ripe.net/rrc01/. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [9] Ris raw data. https://www.ripe.net/analyse/internet-measurements/ routing-information-service-ris/ris-raw-data. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [10] Réseaux européens network coordination centre. https://www.ripe.net/. Accessed: 07-01-2019, 3pm.
- [11] I. Cidon, R. Rom, and Y. Shavitt. Analysis of multi-path routing. *Networking, IEEE/ACM Transactions on*, 7:885–896, 01 2000.
- [12] D. Dietrich. Bogons and bogon filtering. In 33rd meeting of the North American Network Operator's Group (NANOG 33), 2005.
- [13] H. Fujinoki and A. G. Hauck. Analysis on the current and the future internet structure regarding multi-homed and multi-path routing. *J. Internet Services and Applications*, 2:257– 270, 12 2011.
- [14] V. Giotsas, S. Zhou, M. Luckie, and k. claffy. Inferring Multilateral Peering. In ACM SIG-COMM Conference on emerging Networking EXperiments and Technologies (CoNEXT), pages 247–258, Dec 2013.
- [15] U. Kanturska, J.-D. Schmöcker, A. Fonzone, and M. Bell. Improving reliability through multipath routing and link defence: An application of game theory to transport, pages 199–227. 01 2009.
- [16] Z. Li and Y.-K. Kwok. A new multipath routing approach to enhancing tcp security in ad hoc wireless networks, 07 2005.
- [17] M. Luckie, B. Huffaker, k. claffy, A. Dhamdhere, and V. Giotsas. AS Relationships, Customer Cones, and Validation. In *Internet Measurement Conference (IMC)*, pages 243–256, Oct 2013.

[18] M. Nacher, C. Calafate, J.-C. Cano, and P. Manzoni. Comparing tcp and udp performance in manets using multipath enhanced versions of dsr and dymo. pages 39–45, 01 2007.